
 

(next page)→ 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 

Thursday, January 20, 2022 – 6 pm 

General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center 

15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 

==================================================================== 

 

1. Commencement 

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

1.02 The Invocation 

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 

1.04 BOS Organizational Meeting for Calendar Year 2022 

 a. Election of Chairman for Calendar Year 2022 

  (Chairman will turn the meeting over to the County Administrator who will conduct 

this election.  Upon completion, the meeting will be turned over to the 2022 

Chairman.) 

 b. Election of Vice Chairman for Calendar Year 2022 

 c. Establishment of dates, times and place of regular meetings 

 d. Adoption of Rules and Procedures 

1.05 Agenda Amendment(s) 

1.05 Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

2.01 Approval of Minutes:  December 16, 2021 Regular Meetings 

2.02 Warrants and Vouchers 

2.03 Treasurer’s Report – for information only  

2.04 Financial Update – for information only 

2.05 Departmental Reports – for information only 

2.06 Release of Burn Ban   

 

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 

3.01 FY21 Audit of Sussex County – Aaron Hawkins, Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates 

3.02 Introduction of Deputy County Administrator (David Conmy) 

3.03 Route 35/Route 40 Road Safety Assessment – Jerry Kee, VDOT 

3.04 Potential Recreation Projects 

 a.  Sussex County Youth and Adult Recreation Association – William Ricks 

 b.  Airfield 4-H Conference Center – Supervisor Fly 

 

4. Public Hearing  
4.01 Solar Ordinance Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Ordinance Amendment 

 a.  Public Comments 

 b.  Board Comments 

4.02 Action on Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

4.03 Action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

  

5. Appointments  
5.01 Appointment to Housing Oversight Board   



50.2 Appointment to the Planning Commission 

5.03 Appointment to the Department of Social Services Advisory Board  

5.04 Nomination for Appointment to Board of Equalization 

5.05 Sussex Service Authority Alternate At-Large Position 

 

6. Action Items  

6.01 Dell Computer Lease Agreement – Sheriff Giles 

6.02 Request for Funds for Grocery Store Market Analysis  

 

7. Citizens’ Comments  
 

8. Unfinished Business  
8.01 Voting District Mapping  

  

9. New Business  
9.01 Electronic Summons System Fee Ordinance – Sheriff Giles 

 

10. Board Members Comments 

10.01 Blackwater District 

10.02 Courthouse District 

10.03 Henry District 

10.04 Stony Creek District 

10.05 Wakefield District 

10.06 Waverly District 

 

11. Closed Session – none  

   

12. Recess/Adjournment  
12.01 Recess/Adjournment 

12.02 Next Regular Meeting, February 17, 2022 @ 6 p.m. 



  

 

1 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

At a Regular Meeting of the  

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Thursday, November 18, 2021 at 6 pm 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Debbie P. Jones 

Wayne O. Jones 

Susan M. Seward 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

Steve White, Tie Breaker 

 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 
C. Eric Fly, Sr.   

 

STAFF PRESENT: 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

Jeff Gore, County Attorney 

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

G. Reid Foster, Public Safety 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff 

Vincent Givens, Major 

William Hagy, Director of Social Services 

William Jenkins, General Registrar 

Eric Johnson, Captain 

Pamela Jones, Sheriff’s Office 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

 Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

1.  Commencement  
 

1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

 

The December 16, 2021 rescheduled meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was 

called to order by Chair Seward. 

 

1.02  The Invocation 

 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor W. Jones. 

 

1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

 

1.04  Agenda Amendments 



  

 

2 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

Vice Chairman Jones requested to add under Item 11. Closed Session, as Item 11.01b. Personnel 

Matter.  County Administrator Douglas requested to add under Item 6. Action Items as Item. 6.04 

Request for Bun Ban; remove under Item 3. Recognition, Item 3.07 Parks and Recreation; and 

remove under Item. 8, Item 8.01 Crater Regional Workforce Development Board Update. 

  

1.05  Approval of Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the December 16, 

2021 regular agenda to include adding under Item 11. Closed Session, as Item 11.01b. Personnel 

Matter; adding under Item 6. Action Items as Item. 6.04 Request for Bun Ban; removing under 

Item 3. Recognition, Item 3.07 Parks and Recreation; and removing under Item. 8, Item 8.01 Crater 

Regional Workforce Development Board Update.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER  and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Consent agenda 

inclusive of the following: (a) Approval of November 18 Regular and November 30, 2021 Finance 

Committee Meeting minutes; (b) the Approval of Warrants and Vouchers; (c) the Treasurer’s 

Report; (d) Financial Update; (e) Departmental Reports; (f) Public Safety Request – LifeStar 

Ambulance Service Inc. prior Fiscal Year Payment; (g) Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors Joint Public Meeting, Monday, January 3, 2022 at 6 p.m.  All Board members present 

voted aye. 

 

3.  Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 

 

3.01 Introduction of Mr. Thomas Westheimer – Surry/Sussex Shared Building Official  

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that Sussex County has partnered with Surry County for 

shared building services positions.  Mr. Thomas “Matt” Westheimer as the Building Official for 

the shared Sussex and Surry position.   

 

County Administrator Douglas shared some of Mr. Westheimer’s credentials.  His employment 

will commence January 3, 2022. 

 

Mr. Westheimer was in attendance and was introduced to the Board of Supervisors. 

 

3.02 Recognition of Ms. Julie Walton and Prince George County Building Inspections Team 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated Ms. Julie Walton, Prince George County Director of 

Community Development & Code Compliance, and the building inspections team have been 

assisting Sussex County with permits and building inspection services.  The County would like 

recognize and thank them for the services. 

 



  

 

3 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Ms. Julie Walton, Prince George County Director of Community Development & Code 

Compliance, and the building inspections team was in attendance at the meeting and were thanked 

and recognized for their outstanding services in assisting the County.  As a token of appreciation, 

Ms. Walton and the building inspection team were presented with baskets. 

. 

3.03 Introduction of Ms. Sarah Allen – Department of Social Services (DSS) CSA Coordinator 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that the County has entered into an agreement with the City 

of Franklin to share the costs of Children’s Services Act (CSA) professional coordination services.  

 

It was noted that the City of Franklin would submit a bill for shared services of agreed costs.  

 

Ms. Sarah Allen was in attendance at the meeting.  DSS Director Will Hagy introduces her to the 

Board as the new CSA Coordinator.  Mr. Hagy stated that the agreement was finalized and thanked 

County Attorney Gore and County Administrator Douglas for their assistance. 

 

3.04 Regional LEPC Presentation by Virginia Department of Emergency Management (VDEM) 

– Ms. Donna Pletch 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that Ms. Donna Pletch, the Chief Regional Coordinator of 

Region 1 of the Virginia Department of Emergency Management (VDEM), was in attendance to 

present information on a required Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), a requirement 

of our hazard mitigation planning, and the potential for establishing a regional LEPC with our 

neighboring jurisdictions. 

 

Ms. Pletch stated that Mr. Robert 

There was discussion on the when and why LEPC’s were developed. 

 

Mr. Robert Paxton, a Hazardous Material Officer, reviewed that Emergency Planning and 

Community Right to Know Act.  This act was passed by congress in response to the Bhopal and 

West Virginia incidents and was signed into law October 17, 1986.  The Hazardous Waste 

Operations and Emergency Response (HAZWOPER) covers spill response teams.  The Act was 

commonly known as title three of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA).  

 

Sara Title III (EPCRA) four majors were discussed.  Those four setions are (1) Emergency 

Planning (section 301-303); (2) Emergency Release Notification (section 304); (3) Community 

Right to Know reporting requirements (section 311-312); and, Toxic Chemical Release Inventory 

(section 313). 

 

SARA Title III (EPCRA) requirements were reviewed to include (1) the establishment of LEPC’s 

(HAZMAT); (2) the need to identify the sources of potential emergencies; (3) development of 

response procedures/planning for HAZMAT; (4) designates who will coordinate the response; (5) 

reporting extremely hazardous substances (EHS, EPA); and (6) reporting any release of covered 

chemicals. 

 



  

 

4 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

There was discussion of the duties of the LEPC.  The duties are: (1) collect Tier II reports for the 

LEPC during March; (2) develop a community emergency response plan; (3) review the plan 

annually; (4) provide information about chemicals in the community to the public; and, (5) 

membership should cover a broad cross section of the community—Emergency responders, 

Government officials, Industry representatives, and Citizens. 

 

The was discussion of planning tools.  One of the tools include the HAZMAT Emergency Planning 

Guide issued in March 1987, updated March 2001, by the National Response Team, known as the 

“Orange Book” to provide planning and response guidance to local governments.   

 

There is also the Technical Guidance for Hazards Analysis issued December 1987 by the EPA, 

known as the “Green Book”.  It was developed to aid in hazard assessment related to the potential 

airborne release of extremely hazardous substances. 

 

Another planning tools is the When All Else Fails guide issued July 1990 by the EPA to help 

understand the LEPC Program and EPCRA, submitting Tier II reports; and developing 

competency using CAMEO software (or equivalent). 

 

There was discussion of reporting tools because businesses are required to submit Tier II reports 

to: SERC/LEPC/LOCAL FIRE DEPARTMENT. 

 

There was discussion of integrated soft suite CAMEO, Aloha and MarPlot for use by planners and 

emergency responders.  The software directly upload Tier II report information.  It was noted that 

chemical properties and local weather can be used for plume prediction modeling, etc. 

 

There was discussion that the State Emergency Response Commission is a secure and resilient 

Commonwealth panel (SRCP) that is chaired by the coordinator of VDEM and designates and 

supervisors LEPC districts and activities.  It establishes procedures for public release of 

information. 

 

In summary, the Community Right to Know Act and the formation of LEPC’s are important pieces 

in planning for and responding to events that involve hazardous materials.  They can promote 

safety and comply with federal law by informing and educating the public and first responders 

about those potential hazards in and around our community. 

 

The following links for Resources for the Community Right to Know Act: 

• https://www.epa.gov/epcra/30-years-epcra  

• https://www.deq.virginia.gov/land-waste/superfund-amendments-and-reauthorization-

act-sara 

 

It was noted that it was general consensus that the County Administrator and Mr. Foster will work 

together to move forward with documentation for MOU. 

 

A copy of the slideshow was provided in the Board packet. 

 

A video was shown to reinforce the need for emergency planning and hazard identification. 



  

 

5 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

3.05 Redistricting Mapping Presentation – Mr. Alec Brebner, Crater Planning District 

Commission 

 

Mr. Alec Brebner, the Executive Director of the Crater Planning District Commission, provided a 

brief redistricting mapping presentation. He stated that Mr. Jay Ruffa, Director of Planning & GIS 

is responsible for GIS mapping.  Crater Planning District Commission (PDC) serves as a forum 

for regional dialogue and staff support for topics of regional scope:  economic development, 

transportation planning, and environmental planning.  In these roles, Crater PDC staff utilizes 

expertise in geospatial data analysis. 

 

Virginia operates on “one person, one vote”.  Article VII, Section 5 of the Constitution of Virginia 

specifically requires any locality that conducts elections by district to change its district boundaries 

every 10 years.  Code of Virginia § 24.2-304.1 requires the County to use the most recent decennial 

population figures for the purposes of redistricting and reapportioning representation.  Districts 

cannot be drawn to discriminate based on race (Fourteenth Amendment of US Constitution; Voting 

Rights Act of 1965; Article II, Section 6 of Va. Constitution).  Article VII, Section 5 of the 

Constitution of Virginia requires local election districts to “be composed of contiguous and 

compact territory.”  Voting districts must have clearly observable boundaries (§ 24.2-305) and 

should avoid splitting neighborhoods. 

 

Mr. Brebner stated that in prison population reallocation, Virginia’s General Assembly passed 

legislation in 2020, now § 24.2-314 of Virginia law, changing how the Commonwealth and its 

localities must count inmates in correctional facilities.  

 

1.  A person incarcerated in a federal, state, or local correctional facility whose address at the time 

of incarceration was located within the Commonwealth shall be deemed to reside at such address.  

 

2.  A person incarcerated in a federal, state, or local correctional facility whose address at the time 

of incarceration was located outside of the Commonwealth or whose address at the time of 

incarceration cannot be determined shall be deemed to reside at the location of the facility in which 

he is incarcerated 

 

A census was conducted in 2020.  The data became available the latter of 2021.   

 

Sussex County Population, 2010-2020 

 

Source 2010 Population 2020 Population Percent Change 

US Census 12,087 10,829 (10.4%) 

VA Division of 

Legislative Services 

 

12,087 

 

*9,366 

 

(22.5%) 

*The net effect of VA Code §24.2-314 is reallocation of 1,463 inmates from Sussex County to 

other localities across Virginia. (*The information in the above table was provided by/taken from 

Crater PDC presentation.) 

 

Sussex County Population Race and Ethnicity, 2010-2020 



  

 

6 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Sources  

Total 

Population 

7, 

Black 

Alone 

Percent 

Black 

Alone 

 

White 

Alone 

Percent 

White 

Alone 

 

 

Hispanic 

 

Percent 

Hispanic 

2010 US 

Census 

 

12,087 

 

7,023 

 

58.1% 

 

4,747 

 

39.3% 

 

268 

 

2.2% 

2020 US 

Census 

 

10,829 

 

5,781 

 

53.4% 

 

4,501 

 

41.6% 

 

306 

 

2.8% 

2020 VA 

DLS 

 

*9,366 

 

n/a 

 

- 

 

n/a 

 

- 

 

n/a 

 

- 

*The net effect of VA Code §24.2-314 is reallocation of 1,463 inmates from Sussex County to 

other localities across Virginia. Race and ethnicity do not appear in the data set provided by the 

Virginia Division of Legislative Services. (*The information in the above table was provided 

by/taken from Crater PDC presentation.) 

 

Redistricting – Determination of Need 

 

1. Map 2011 voting districts approved by Board of Supervisors, confirm with staff. 

2. Collect inmate-adjusted population from Virginia Division of Legislative Services. 

3. Determine target population for each BOS voting district using inmate-adjusted population: 

9,366 divided by 6 equals 1,561. 

4. Determine allowable deviation from average voting district population in consultation with 

County Attorney: 1,483 - 1,639 (plus or minus 5%). 

5. Map 2020 census blocks with inmate adjusted populations against 2011 voting districts. 

1. Changes in law related to §24.2-314 require the remaining inmate population to remain in 

its voting district. 

6. Summarize 2020 populations by 2011 voting districts. 

 

Sussex County Population by Current Voting Districts, 2010-2020 

 

 

 

District 

2010 Census 

Population – No 

Change Scenario 

2020 Adjusted 

Population – No 

Change Scenario 

Adjusted Pop’n vs. 

Mean 

(limit: 5% {+/- 78}) 

Waverly 1,688 1,597 +36 

Stony Creek 1,527 1,441 -78 

Courthouse 4,035 1,906 +345 

Wakefield 1,624 1,452 -109 

Henry  1,526 1,423 -138 

Blackwater 1,687 1,547 -17 

Mean (target) n/a 1,561 - 

*The information in the above table was provided by/taken from Crater PDC presentation. 

 

Potential 2021 Voting Districts 

 

This exhibit shows one possible solution, adjusting voting district boundaries to bring populations 

into range for “one person, one vote” (1,561 plus or minus 78).  



  

 

7 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Other potential solutions are numerous given the current shapes of voting districts and array of 

census blocks. 

 

 
*Map provided by Crater Planning District Commission 

 

Sussex County Population 2020 Potential Voting District Map 

 

 

 

District 

2020 Adjusted 

Population – Potential 

Map Scenario 

2020 Adjusted 

Population – No 

Change Scenario 

 

No-Change vs. 

Potential Map 

Waverly 1,597 1,597 00 

Stony Creek 1,513 1,441 +72 

Courthouse 1,584 1,906 -322 

Wakefield 1,584 1,452 +132 

Henry  1,493 1,423 +70 

Blackwater 1,595 1,547 +48 

Mean (target) n/a 1,561 - 

 

 

 



  

 

8 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Sussex County 2020 Potential Voting Districts Map – Racial Characteristics 

 

District 2020 Census 

Population 

2020 Census: 

White Alone 

2020 Census: 

Black Alone 

2020 Adjusted 

Population 

Waverly 1,578 340 1,131 1,597 

Stony Creek 1,502 622 805 1,513 

Courthouse 3,109 1,346 1,677 1,584 

Courthouse 

(unincarcerated) 

 

1,820 

 

975 

 

759 

1,219 

Wakefield 1,571 585 885 1,584 

Henry  1,481 608 791 1,493 

Blackwater 1,588 1,000 492 1,595 

Note: Virginia DLS data do not report racial characteristics. 2020 US Census data are used to 

approximate impacts of the Potential Voting Districts Map. (*Data table provided by Crater 

Planning District Commission.) 

 

There was inquiry of timeline.  It was noted that the timeline is as the County can practicably do 

this by law.  The new process and COVID were a few factors in timeline.  There was a brief 

discussion of new State laws. 

 

It was noted that 365 inmates were still counted in the County. There was discussion of It noted 

that the There was a request to provide a more practical number. 

 

A copy of the map was provided to the Board. 

 

3.06 Recognition of Richard Douglas for ICMA 20 Years of Service 

 

The International City/County Management Association (ICMA) is the leading organization of 

local government professionals dedicated to creating and sustaining thriving communities 

throughout the world. 

 

At its 107th Annual Conference, Mr. Richard Douglas was recognized and awarded a certificate in 

honor of 20 years of service in the local government profession.u 
 

Chairman Seward presented County Administrator Douglas with the ICMA Certificate for 20 

Years of Service. 

 Management Association is the throughout the world 

A copy of the ICMA Certificate for 20 Years of Service 

 

3.07 Parks and Recreation – Supervisor Fly 

 

The item was removed during agenda amendments. 

 

4.  Public Hearing 
 

There was no Public Hearing. 



  

 

9 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

5.  Appointments  
 

5.01 Nominations for the Board of Equalization 

 

This item was on the previous month’s agenda.  County Administrator Douglas stated that the 

County is currently undergoing a reassessment for 2022.  As part of the reassessment, the County 

makes recommendations for nomination to the Circuit Clerk Judge for appointment to the Board 

of Equalization.  In 2018, the Board of Equalization was put in place; however, no terms were set 

and one member is no longer eligible to continue to serve.  Staff contacted members appointed in 

2018.  They were willing to continue to serve if it’s the Board’s desire. 
 

The four members currently serving on the Board of Equalization are: (1) Ms. Antoinette Jones, 

13174 Shands Road, Stony Creek, Virginia 23882; (2) Mr. Dennis Mason, 407 East Main Street, 

Wakefield, VA 23888; (3) Ms. Carla Mayes, 2837 Petersburg Road, Waverly, VA 23890; and, (4) 

Mr. Jerry Parham, 33117 Sussex Drive, Waverly, VA 23890. 

 

FYI:  The Board of Equalization is composed of five members.  Staff has contacted members 

appointed by the Circuit Court Judge in 2018.  All are willing to continue serve, if reappointed.   
 

The five-member panel must meet the following requirements: (1) Each member must be a resident 

of the County; (2) A majority of the board must be freeholders; (3) Thirty percent shall be 

commercial or residential real estate appraisers, other real estate professionals, builders, 

developers or legal or financial professionals; and, (4) Each member shall attend and participate 

in the basic course of instruction given by the Department of Taxation.  
 

No action was taken at the time.  This item will be on the December agenda. 

 

5.02 Appointment to Sussex Service Authority 

 

This item was on previous month’s meeting agenda.  County Administrator Douglas stated that 

staff was advised by Mr. Frank Irving, of Sussex Service Authority, that there was a vacancy for 

an unexpired term on the Sussex Service Authority for an alternate in the At-Large position.   

 

The position is for any citizen who resides in Sussex County (prefer them to be in our service area, 

but not mandatory) and is not an elected official.  The position is currently held by Sam Harrison 

but he has moved out of Sussex County and is no longer eligible.  He will continue to serve until 

his replacement has been appointed.   

 

This position will serve through December 2022 at which time they can be renewed for another 

four-year term. 

 

Board members are to provide names at the January meeting. 

 

5.03 Appointment to the Department of Social Services Advisory Board 

 

This item was tabled from the September 16, 2021 Board of Supervisors regular meeting. 



  

 

10 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

At previous Board meetings, the Board discussed contacting members of the former DSS 

Administrative Board in regards to their interest in serving on the Advisory Board.  There was also 

the Board’s general consensus to have representation from each district. 

 

No action was taken.   Board members are to continue to seek interested persons for appointments 

for their district and provide biographies to deputy clerk of the Board. 

 

6. Action Items 

 

6.01 Sussex External Organizations Grant Document 

 

During the FY2022 budget development process, the Board of Supervisors directed staff to 

develop a review process for external organization funding requests.  Attached for your 

consideration are: 1) a policy governing contributions to external organizations; 2) a grant 

application form for use by external organizations; and 3) an external organization grant 

agreement.  These documents are used by other local governments in the process of considering 

funding to external organizations and provide accountability and a consistent format for submitting 

information needed in the decision-making process.  

 

Staff recommends approval of each of the three documents. 

 

There was discussion of reconsidering administrative costs for auditors and expenses of lobbyists 

as disallowed costs.  There was discussion of legal fees being disallowed if you have to outside 

legal opinions that will have to paid to be incorporated as eligible fees. 

 

The following was included in the Board packet:(1) Policy governing contributions to external; 

organizations;  (2) Grant application form for use by external organizations; and (3) External 

organization grant agreement. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the policy governing 

contributions to external organizations; (2) the grant application form for use by external 

organizations; and (3) the external organization grant agreement. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward 

Voting nay:  none 

Abstained:  Supervisor Tyler 

Absent:  Supervisor Fly 

 

6.02 Finance Committee Recommendations 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that there are two requested recommendations from the 

Finance Committee meeting held November 30, 2022.   The first request requests the ARPA 

funding.  The list previously provided has been amended  

 

  



  

 

11 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

At the Finance Committee meeting on November 30th, the following actions were recommended: 

  

1) Approve the requested list of ARPA-funded items as amended and reflected on the attached 

table, at a total cost of $892,000 (as reflected in the attached budget amendment). This table 

reflects the initial proposed use of ARPA funds, staff modifications, and the final Finance 

Committee recommendations.  

2) Sheriff Giles presented a request for increased staff compensation to retain and attract 

employees. A budget amendment is attached for your consideration that reflects an increase in 

departmental compensation that would require a fund balance appropriation of $197,672.88 to 

cover the remaining six months of the fiscal year (the total appropriation is $233,676.03 but 

reflects a $31,756.24 contribution from Waverly and $4,246.91 contribution from Wakefield). 

For informational purposes the Finance Committee also heard a presentation from the County’s 

insurance consultant on a health reimbursement account (being further reviewed by staff); 

discussed funding for parks and recreation alternatives; and received Supervisor Tyler’s 

request to consider funding for pedestrian safety improvements in Jarratt (the County 

Administrator has met with the VDOT resident engineer to begin studying improvements).  

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that per his request, the Economic Development Director 

and Human Resource positions were consolidated.   The initial Building and Grounds projects; 

Animal Services horse trailer; Waverly’s Wastewater and the Sheriff’s sanitizing machines were 

removed from the ARPA Supplemental budget.  He noted that the big ticket items are Life Star 

and Garda World. 

 

Chair Seward requested the Board to consider purchasing the horse trailer back to the ARPA 

budget at $9.000—half the cost. 

 

The ARPA Budget table; ARPA budget amendment; and the Sheriff’s Budget amendment were 

included in the Board Packet.  

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by W. JONES and carried:  RESOLVED 

that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby amends and approved RESOLUTION #21-

122 FY22 BUDGET AMENDMENT, to-wit: 

 

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors held its regular Board of Supervisors 

meeting on December 16, 2021 at the Sussex County Courthouse; and 

 

 WHEREAS, adjustments were made for proposed use of funds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the total expenditures of funds are $901,000 as listed; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the total revenues are $901,000. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 

amendment for the following functions: General Government, Public Works, Fire, Rescue and 

Emergency Services, Parks, Recreation & Cultural, Sheriff’s Operation and Jail be and hereby is 

made for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. 



  

 

12 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Voting aye:  Supervisors D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward 

Voting nay:  none 

Abstained:  Supervisor Tyler 

Absent:  Supervisor Fly 

 

County Administrator stated that second request was in reference to the Sheriff’s Office regarding 

staffing and compensation.  The request at does not address the issue the bigger issue of staffing 

new hires.  The Sheriff has provided increases, effective January 1, 2022 through the next six 

months, June 30, 2022 in the amount of $197,672.88 to cover the remaining six months of the 

fiscal year (the total appropriation is $233,676.03 but reflects a $31,756.24 contribution from 

Waverly and $4,246.91 contribution from Wakefield). 

 

County Administrator Douglas noted that there was no new source of funding for this request.  The 

appropriation will have to be taken from the Fund balance. The total reflection of the Towns of 

Wakefield and Waverly contributions.  There was discussion of the proposed potential 10% raise 

for law enforcement. 

 

It noted that the funding covers the additional FICA; however, it didn’t included/cover overtime 

pay.  The Sheriff stated that he would be able manage the overtime pay for the next six months. 

 

Sheriff Giles request that if he starts running into problem that he be allowed move money from 

line item to another.  It was stated that there wasn’t a problem with moving funds around as long 

as the bottom line total is not overspent. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the Resolution #21-121, 

to-wit: 

 

RESOLUTION #21-121 

FY22 BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors held its regular Board of Supervisors 

meeting on December 16, 2021 at the Sussex County Courthouse; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s is requesting increased department compensation;  

 

WHEREAS, a fund balance appropriation in the amount of $197,672.88 is needed to cover 

the remaining six months of the fiscal year; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Wakefield contributes $4,246.91; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Waverly contributes $31,756.24; and  

 

WHEREAS, the total appropriation is $233,676.03.  

 



  

 

13 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 

amendment for the Sheriff’s Operation and Jail be and hereby is made for the period of July 1, 

2021 through June 30, 2022.  

 

FUND # 100 

GENERAL FUND 

REVENUE 

 Fund 100 Local Revenue 

  Fund Balance      $197,673 

  Town of Waverly     $31,756 

  Town of Wakefield     $4,247 

 Total Revenues      $233,676 

 

EXPENDITURE 

 Fund 100 Sheriff’s Operations & Jail    $233,676 

 Total Expenditures      $233,676 

 

Adopted this 16th day of December, 2021. 

All Board members present voted aye. 

 

6.03 Mega Site Clearing Proposal 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that the request is permission to clear possibly a dozen acres 

at the Mega Site and then construct an access road to provide onsite access to prospects to see the 

property. 

 

Staff has been working with the Timmons Group to provide for a cleared area at the Sussex Mega 

Site that can be used to show/meet with industrial prospects onsite (as opposed to meeting with 

prospects at the adjacent WWTP facility).  This project, as depicted on the attached map, would 

include logging and mulching 11.4 acres, the installation of an 1800’ gravel access road, and a 

small temporary shelter on the property.  While timber proceeds should cover most of the logging 

costs, staff is requesting that economic development designated funds from previous Henry site 

timber sales be utilized to cover any outstanding costs, and a budget appropriation resolution would 

be provided at a later date, based on actual project costs (staff anticipates no more than $50,000 

would be needed to complete this project). 

 

Staff is requesting approval to proceed with this project, to include logging, mulching, access 

improvements, and temporary site improvements. 

 

The Map of the Mega Site was included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED the that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the county 

administrator to proceed with obtaining bids for this Mega Site project, to include logging, 

mulching, access improvements, and temporary site improvements.  All Board members present 

voted aye. 



  

 

14 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

6.04 Request for Burn Ban 

 

Mr. Reid Foster stated that he was approached by the local foresters to bring to Board a request 

for a burn ban due to the drought and winds.  He stated he spoke with Ms. Pletch, with VDEM, 

prior to the meeting and was advised that the Governor does have a burn ban presented from the 

Virginia Department of Forestry for the eastern portion of the State, but does not know whether 

the Governor will act on it or not. 

 

The local foresters is requesting the County for burn ban for at least 60 days. 

 

County Gore stated that if the County doesn’t already have a burn ban in place, upon the 

Declaration of Emergency from the local emergency director, the only way to issue a burn ban is 

through an emergency ordinance wherein it wouldn’t have to be advertised and would only last 

for 60 days. 

 

County Attorney Gore recommended considering have an ordinance on the books that in the future 

will allow, by local declaration of the emergency services, to implement a ban. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, and seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves implementing 

an Emergency Burn Ban Notice. 

 

7.  Citizens’ Comments 

 

 Jamica Giles (Waverly District) – Improvement Association. 

 Kevin Bracy (Courthouse District) – Helping senior citizens; DMV Select. 

 

8.  Unfinished Business  
 

8.01 Crater Regional Workforce Development Board Update  

 

This item was removed during the agenda amendments. 

 

9.  New Business 

 

There was no New Business. 

 

10.  Board Member Comments 
 

10.01 Blackwater District –   Last meeting as Chairman – 5 years; official award of Sussex VATI 

Grant. 

 

10.02 Courthouse District – absent 

 



  

 

15 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

10.03 Henry District – Various MOUs; Head Start absent for Christmas songs due COVID; 

General Assembly passed G-3 program initiative (skills in welding, HVAC, Early Childhood 

education, cyber security, etc.); awarded 2 GEN program. 

 

10.04 Stony Creek District – none 

 

10.05 Wakefield District –  none 

 

10.06 Waverly District – vacant 

 

11. Closed Session 

 

11.01 Convene to Closed Session 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby enters Closed Session to (1) 

discuss the disposition of publicly held real property because discussion in an open meeting would 

adversely affect our bargaining position, pursuant to Va. Code Section 2.2-3711(A)3; and (2) 

Personnel Matters, discussion, consideration, or interviews of prospective candidates for 

employment; assignment, appointment, promotion, performance, demotion, salaries, disciplining, 

or resignation of specific public officers, appointees, or employees of any public body, applicable 

Va. Code Section §2.2- 3711(A)1. 

All Board members present voted aye. 

 

Supervisor Tyler departed during Closed Session. 

 

11.02/03.  Reconvene to Open Session/Certification of Closed Session 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby reconvened to Open Session 

and convened a Closed Meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance 

with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves adoption of resolution for 

certification, to-wit: 

 

WHEREAS, that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors convened a Closed Meeting on this date 

pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom 

of Information Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, requires a certification by the 

Board that such Closed Meeting was conducted inconformity with Virginia law. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby certifies that, to 

the best of each member’s knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from 

Open Meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the Closed Meeting to which this 



  

 

16 | Page – Minutes of December 16, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the 

motion convening the Closed Meeting were heard discussed or considered. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward 

Voting nay:  none 

Absent during vote:  Supervisor Tyler 

Absent:  Supervisor Fly 

 

11.04 Action Resulting from Closed Session 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby awards the Branch Street 

Property to Pocahontas Temple Church in the amount of $2,500 and directs County Administrator 

to work out details with their representative.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by W. JONES and carried:  RESOLVED 

that the Sussex County Board of supervisors hereby awards the Pocahontas Park property, the only 

bid received, in the amount of $5,500 and directs County Administrator to work out details with 

their representative.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

There was no action on the Chambliss Elementary School property. 

 

12.  Adjournment 

 

12.01 Adjournment 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the December 16, 2021 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of 

Supervisors hereby adjourned at 10:28 p.m. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward 

Voting nay:  none 

Absent during vote:  Supervisor Tyler 

Absent:  Supervisor Fly 

 

12.02 Next Meeting 

 

The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting will be held on Thursday, February 17, 2022 at 6 

p.m. 



TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $703,832.33

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL $6,202.77

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS: CHECK NO. AMOUNTS PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF DECEMBER 2021 220644-220704 127,325.34$       RUN DATE 12/2/2021
220705 166.36$              RUN DATE 12/2/2021
220706-220759 121,797.62$       RUN DATE 12/9/2021
220783-220861 204,870.96$       RUN DATE 12/16/2021
220862 6,000.00$           RUN DATE 12/16/2021
220863-220914 129,353.79$       RUN DATE 12/29/2021

Total Regular Warrants $589,514.07

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS: 220760-220771 57,358.38$         RUN DATE 12/16/2021
220772-220782 56,959.88$         RUN DATE 12/22/2021

Total Deduction Warrants: $114,318.26

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $703,832.33

VOID CHECKS 
220243 6,000.00$           RUN DATE 12/16/2021
220035 202.77$              RUN DATE 12/28/2021

January 20, 2022

      WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
CHECKS 

 























































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PAYROLL 
DEDUCTION 

CHECKS 











SUSSEX COUNTY 

TREASURER'S REPORT 

SUBMITTED BY DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 

I - BANK RECONCILIATIN 

2-2021 STATEMENTOFTAXASSESSMENT

3 - LANDFILL TIPPING FEES 

4- 10 YEAR LANDFILL REVENUE SUMMARY

2.03

Consent Agenda - 1

sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda - 2



Consent Agenda - 3



Consent Agenda - 4



Consent Agenda - 5



2.04

Consent Agenda - 6

sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda - 7



Consent Agenda - 8



Consent Agenda - 9



2.05 

Departmental Reports 

January 20, 2022 
Board of Supervisors 

Meeting 

Consent Agenda - 10



Solid Waste Services 

January 20, 2022 

BOS Meeting 

Consent Agenda - 11



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 11/01/2021 12:00 AM to 11/30/2021 11:59 PM

Business Unit Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons 554.64 

Origin Total 554.64 

DE MSWT 18.74 

DE Sandblast Grit-Tons 17.14 

DE Special Misc-Tons 8.75 

Origin Total 44.63 

MD MSWT 119.25 

MD POTW Sludge-Tons 159.78 

MD Sludge Indus-Tons 45.60 

MD SludgeIndus-Tons 42.09 

MD Special Misc-Tons 35.27 

Origin Total 401.99 

NC MSWT 3,306.34 

NC Special Misc-Tons 2,290.78 

Origin Total 5,597.12 

NY MSWT 67,868.31 

Origin Total 67,868.31 

PA MSWT 68.51 

Origin Total 68.51 

SUSS BUS MSWT 40.54 

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons 1,048.87 

Origin Total 1,089.41 

SUSS RES MSWT 431.76 

Origin Total 431.76 

VA Auto Fluff-Tons 333.71 

VA CDTC 86.36 

VA MSWT 23,419.43 

VA SludgeIndus-Tons 114.61 

VA Special Misc-Tons 1,266.07 

Origin Total 25,220.18 

Totals 101,276.55 

Consent Agenda - 12



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 12/01/2021 12:00 AM to 12/31/2021 11:59 PM

Business Unit Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons 476.51 

Origin Total 476.51 

DE MSWT 133.53 

DE Sandblast Grit-Tons 4.09 

Origin Total 137.62 

MA MSWT 22.07 

Origin Total 22.07 

MD MSWT 81.52 

MD POTW Sludge-Tons 530.50 

MD Sludge Indus-Tons 120.11 

MD SludgeIndus-Tons 81.63 

MD Special Misc-Tons 54.13 

Origin Total 867.89 

NC CDTC 62.31 

NC MSWT 3,675.23 

NC Special Misc-Tons 2,257.80 

Origin Total 5,995.34 

NJ MSWT 2,260.85 

Origin Total 2,260.85 

NY MSWT 58,949.77 

Origin Total 58,949.77 

OH MSWT 16.54 

Origin Total 16.54 

PA MSWT 94.06 

Origin Total 94.06 

SC MSWT 12.45 

Origin Total 12.45 

SUSS BUS MSWT 35.04 

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons 1,052.27 

Origin Total 1,087.31 

SUSS RES MSWT 413.01 

Origin Total 413.01 

VA Auto Fluff-Tons 216.26 

VA CDTC 106.18 

VA MSWT 23,579.83 

VA SludgeIndus-Tons 23.60 

VA Special Misc-Tons 1,343.11 

Origin Total 25,268.98 

Totals 95,602.40 

Consent Agenda - 13



January 20, 2022 

BOS Meeting 

Consent Agenda - 14



OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
G. REID FOSTER, JR.
PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATOR
(804) 834-1305 EXT. 22
EMAIL:  RFOSTER@SUSSEXCOUNTYVA.GOV

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 
POST OFFICE BOX 1397 
15080 COURTHOUSE ROAD 
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884 

January 10, 2022 

TO:  Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

FROM: Reid Foster, Jr., Public Safety Coordinator 

SUBJECT: December 2021 Monthly Reports 

Enclosed you will find the monthly report for December 2021.  

RADIO SYSTEM:  Still having problems with the paging system.  Having meeting setup for 
January 10 to find out all options to get it working. 

Got quotes on replacing Mutual Aid radios in all emergency vehicles. Letter requesting funding 
coming in January. 

FIRE DEPTS: Equipment for new engines is ordered. 

Looking to go to factory in March for final inspection with Del. in April. 

Setting up EVOC and CPR classes for departments. 

Finalizing run maps for cad system 

Pump testing is complete and repairs have been made to the trucks needing them. 

RESCUE: Working on MOU for Waverly Rescue. 

New medic is on assembly line Looking at April del. 

Still working with LifeStar on personnel issues. 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: COVID Is running rapid in Sussex. Working with Crater Health for 
test sites, test kits and vaccine clinics. 

Have sent EOP to VDEM for final review. 

Will be setting up another CPR class for employees. 

Consent Agenda - 15



Planning Department 

January 20, 2022 

BOS Meeting 

Consent Agenda - 16



Planning & Zoning Department 

Monthly Report for November 2021 
Michael Poarch, County Planner 

Community Development/Special Programs Grant Administration  

Current Developments 

 The Fairfield Inn site is near completion. 

 Waste Management Atlantic Waste Disposal added a new borrow area at the landfill. 

 Site Plan Review for Waverly Solar LLC and Pit Crew LLC 

Sussex County Urgent Need (UNOS) Project 

 Seven (7) housing projects have been completed under the UNOS project, including four (4) substantial 

reconstructions and three (3) rehabilitations. 

 One (1) housing rehabilitation project has work underway with 85% completion. 

 One (1) housing rehabilitation project is under contract. 

 Two (2) substantial reconstructions are under contract with emergency procurement. 

 One (1) housing project has been negotiated down and pending contract signing. 

 Façade Improvements for two (2) businesses will be contracted under emergency procurement and sole 

source. 

Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Project 

 Five (5) housing projects have been completed under the Pocahontas project, including three (3) substantial 

reconstructions and two (2) rehabilitations. 

 One (1) housing project has been negotiated down and pending contract signing. 

 Approach on proposed alternatives for street improvements, including streetlights, sidewalks, and connector 

road. 

Planning & Zoning 

 No Planning Commission Meeting for the month of November. 

 Eleven (11) Zoning Applications were reviewed and approved for November; four (4) for carport, four (4) for 
single family dwelling, one (1) for pole building, one (1) for tent, and one (1) for in-ground pool. 

 Four (4) new address assignments were issued for new residential construction on Jerusalem Plank Road, 
Loco School Road, Comans Well Road and Railroad Bed for November. 

Erosion & Sediment Control 

 Required Monthly Land Disturbance Report to DEQ are up-to-date. 

 Four (4) E&S projects are active with inspections being made within a two week period or after each significant 

rainfall event. 
Consent Agenda - 17



Sheriff’s Department 

January 20, 2022 

BOS Meeting 

Consent Agenda - 18



Consent Agenda - 19



Consent Agenda - 20



Consent Agenda - 21



Consent Agenda - 22



BUILDING 

DEPARTMENT 

January 20, 2022 

BOS Meeting 

Building Department 

 

Consent Agenda - 23



Consent Agenda - 24



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Consent Agenda #2.06 

Subject:   Request for Burn Ban Release 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 

Summary:  Mr. Reid Foster, Public Safety Coordinator, is requesting the release of the burn ban 
due the recent precipitation. 

Recommendation:  That the Board approves the request for the release of the burn ban due to 
the recent precipitation—rainfall and snow. 

Attachment:  Copy of Mr. Foster’s letter of request, dated January 10, 2022 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  That the Board approves the request for the release of the burn ban due to the recent 
precipitation—rainfall and snow. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Consent Agenda - 25



OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
G. REID FOSTER, JR.
PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATOR
(804) 834-1305 EXT. 22
EMAIL:  RFOSTER@SUSSEXCOUNTYVA.GOV

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 
POST OFFICE BOX 1397 
15080 COURTHOUSE ROAD 
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884 

January 10, 2022 

TO:   Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

FROM: Reid Foster, Jr., Public Safety Coordinator 

SUBJECT: Burn Ban 

Please add the burn ban to the agenda for this coming board meeting. I am requesting the release 

of the burn ban due the rain fall and snow we have received. If you have any questions, please 

contact me. 

Consent Agenda - 26



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item: Recognition #3.01 

Subject:  PRESENTATION:  FY21 Audit of the County of Sussex, Virginia – Mr. Aaron Hawkins 
(Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates) 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Mr. Aaron Hawkins, with Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, will be present to review 
the FY21 Final Audit Report. 

A copy of the County of Sussex Annual Financial Report for the FYE June 30, 2021 will be provided 
under separate cover. 

Recommendation:  N/A 

  Attachments: 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:    

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY: 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ White  ___ ___ 
   (Tie Breaker) 

Recognitions - Page 1



Recognitions - Page 2



Recognitions - Page 3



Recognitions - Page 4



Recognitions - Page 5



Recognitions - Page 6



Recognitions - Page 7



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Recognitions #3.02 

Subject:  Introduction of Deputy County Administrator 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 
Summary:    David Conmy will be introduced as the new Deputy County Administrator, after 
beginning employment on January 10th.  His primary focus will be on economic development. 
David brings a wide range of skills and experience to the position, and his resume is attached for 
your review. 

Recommendation:   None 

 Attachments:    Resume 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   . 

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY: 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly Seward 

D. Jones Tyler 

W. Jones White  

(Tie Breaker) 

Recognitions - Page 8



Recognitions - Page 9



Recognitions - Page 10



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Recognitions #3.03 

Subject:  Route 35/Route 40 Road Safety Assessment – Jerry Kee, VDOT 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 
Summary:    Jerry Kee with VDOT will present a recently completed a road safety assessment for 

the Jerusalem Road (VA Route 35) at Sussex Road (VA Route 40) intersection, 
including a recommendation to consider a modular roundabout.      

Recommendation:   For information and feedback at this time 

 Attachments:    Road Safety Assessment for Jerusalem Plank Rd and Sussex Rd 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:    

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY: 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly Seward 

D. Jones Tyler 

W. Jones White  

(Tie Breaker) 

Recognitions - Page 11



Recognitions - Page 12



Recognitions - Page 13



Recognitions - Page 14



Recognitions - Page 15



Recognitions - Page 16



Recognitions - Page 17



Recognitions - Page 18



Recognitions - Page 19



Recognitions - Page 20



Recognitions - Page 21



Recognitions - Page 22



Recognitions - Page 23



Recognitions - Page 24



Recognitions - Page 25



Recognitions - Page 26



Recognitions - Page 27



Recognitions - Page 28



Recognitions - Page 29



Recognitions - Page 30



Recognitions - Page 31



Recognitions - Page 32



Recognitions - Page 33



Recognitions - Page 34



Recognitions - Page 35



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Recognitions #3.04 

Subject:  Potential Recreation Projects  

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 
Summary:    These two presentations are related to possible parks/recreation improvements for 
Sussex County and are the result of discussion from a recent Finance Committee meeting to 
discuss the use of ARPA funding.  William Ricks will present a request for funding for improvements 
to the Waverly pool (Sussex County Youth and Adult Recreation Association).  Supervisor Fly will 
present a proposal to consider contracting with the Airfield 4-H Center for use of recreational 
facilities and programs. 

Recommendation:   None at this time 

 Attachments:   None  
============================================================================== 

ACTION:   . 

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY: 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly Seward 

D. Jones Tyler 

W. Jones
White  
(Tie Breaker) 

Recognitions - Page 36



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Public Hearing Item 4.01 

Subject:  Solar Ordinance Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Ordinance Amendments 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 
============================================================================== 
Summary:  The Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors previously considered 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance amendments regarding solar energy and battery 
storage facilities as contained in the attached report prepared by Darren Coffey, AICP, The 
Berkley Group at a joint meeting on September 17, 2021.   

Since the meeting, staff worked with The Berkley Group and Crater Planning District Commission 
to develop a map showing prime agricultural lands in the County.  The map is contained in the 
proposed comprehensive plan modification document and may be referenced therein. 

Staff also worked with Mr. Coffey to provide the rationale for the 100-acre minimum as follows: 
1 MW of solar takes about 15-20 acres of land in Sussex County due to the environmental 
constraints on much of the land. Therefore, a 5 MW facility would probably have to be on 
80-100 acres or more.  Smaller facilities are exempt from the revenue options provided
by the state, take as much time to process as a larger facility application, and fragment
the established and preferred land use patterns of the county as stated in the comp
plan.  The Board has stated that it does not want to consider smaller facilities for these
reasons, therefore a larger minimum project size addresses all of those issues.

Recommendation:  The Planning Commission at its regular meeting on October 4, 2021, again 
considered the amendments and requested staff to bring back more information on the 
location of prime agricultural soils and the rationale for the 100-acre minimum.  

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning 
amendments on December 6, 2021.   

The Commission voted to recommend approval of the Comprehensive Plan amendment (8-1-1) 
adding the recommended criteria that solar and battery storage facilities be “located less than 
or equal to one (1) mile from a transmission line”. 

The Commission voted to recommend approval of the Zoning Ordinance amendment (9-0-1). 

Attachments:    
 Report by Darren Coffey, dated August 30, 2021
 Resolution/Proposed Modifications to the 2004-2005 Comprehensive Plan in

Consideration of Solar and Battery Storage Facilities (December 7, 2021)
 Ordinance to Amend and Reenact Article I, Sections 16.1, Definitions and Article XXIII,

Solar and Battery Facilities

============================================================================== 

Public Hearing - 1



ACTION:  To be determined 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Public Hearing - 2



Public Hearing - 3



Public Hearing - 4



Public Hearing - 5



Public Hearing - 6



Public Hearing - 7



Public Hearing - 8



Public Hearing - 9



Public Hearing - 10



Public Hearing - 11



Public Hearing - 12



Public Hearing - 13



Public Hearing - 14



Public Hearing - 15



Public Hearing - 16



Public Hearing - 17



Public Hearing - 18



Public Hearing - 19



Public Hearing - 20



Public Hearing - 21



Public Hearing - 22



Public Hearing - 23



Public Hearing - 24



Public Hearing - 25



Public Hearing - 26



Public Hearing - 27



Public Hearing - 28



Public Hearing - 29



Public Hearing - 30



Public Hearing - 31



Public Hearing - 32



Public Hearing - 33



Public Hearing - 34



Public Hearing - 35



Public Hearing - 36



Public Hearing - 37



Public Hearing - 38



Public Hearing - 39



Public Hearing - 40



Public Hearing - 41



Public Hearing - 42



Public Hearing - 43



Public Hearing - 44



Public Hearing - 45



Public Hearing - 46



Public Hearing - 47



Public Hearing - 48



Public Hearing - 49



Public Hearing - 50



Public Hearing - 51



Public Hearing - 52



Public Hearing - 53



Public Hearing - 54



Public Hearing - 55



Public Hearing - 56



Public Hearing - 57



Public Hearing - 58



Public Hearing - 59



Public Hearing - 60



Public Hearing - 61



Public Hearing - 62



Public Hearing - 63



Public Hearing - 64



Public Hearing - 65



Public Hearing - 66



Public Hearing - 67



Public Hearing - 68



Public Hearing - 69



Public Hearing - 70



Public Hearing - 71



Public Hearing - 72



Public Hearing - 73



Public Hearing - 74



Public Hearing - 75



Public Hearing - 76



Public Hearing - 77



Public Hearing - 78



Public Hearing - 79



Public Hearing - 80



Public Hearing - 81



Public Hearing - 82



Public Hearing - 83



Public Hearing - 84



Public Hearing - 85



Public Hearing - 86



Public Hearing - 87



Public Hearing - 88



Public Hearing - 89



Public Hearing - 90



Public Hearing - 91



Public Hearing - 92



Public Hearing - 93



Public Hearing - 94



Public Hearing - 95



Public Hearing - 96



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Appointments #5.01 

Subject:   Appointment to the Housing Oversight Board 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20, 2022   

============================================================================== 
Summary:  Tanisha Green submitted her letter of resignation from the Housing Oversight Board. 
The purpose of the Board is to provide fair and equitable application oversight of the Pocahontas 
Community Improvement Grant, Phases I and II, and the Regional Urgent Needs Grant Program 
as required under the County’s contract with the funding agency, Virginia Department of Housing 
and Community Development.  The criteria for Mrs. Green’s replacement is as follows: 

 Active member of community, already have an existing relationship with many of the
neighbors, and having been an active participant in organizing the neighborhood during
the Planning Grant process.  They should understand the intent of the program and be
able to assist the County in communicating with project area residents to assure they fully
understand the program.

Recommendation: Per the Board’s discussion. 

Attachment:     Resignation Letter 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   None 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker) 

Appointments - Page 1



January 5, 2022 

Sussex County  
Housing Department 
P.O. Box 1397 
Sussex, Virginia 23884 

To Whom It May Concern, 

Please be advised that this letter is written to inform you of my decision to resign from my 
position on the Housing Oversight Board, effective January 10, 2022. 

My other commitments have become too great for me to be able to fulfill the requirements of 
my position on the board, and I feel it is best for me to make room for someone with the time 
to devote to the job.  

It has been a pleasure being a part of the Housing Oversight Board. I am grateful for all we have 
accomplished over the years, and I have no doubt that the board will continue to make even 
greater successes in the future. 

If I can be of any assistance during the time it will take to fill the position, please don’t hesitate 
to ask. 

Best Regards, 

Tanisha Green 

Tanisha Green 

Appointments - Page 2



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Appointments #5.02 

Subject:  Appointments to the Planning Commission 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   The terms of Ms. Brenda Burgess, 205 West Main Street, and Mr. Roger King, Post 
Office Box 349, both of Waverly, Virginia 23890, are due to expire on the Planning Commission 
January 31, 2022.  Staff has contacted Ms. Burgess and Mr. King.  Ms. Burgess is unable to continue 
to serve.  Mr. King is willing to serve, if reappointed. 

Recommendation:  That the Board reappoints Ms. Brenda Burgess, 205 West Main Street, and Mr. 
Roger King, Post Office Box 349, both of Waverly, Virginia 23890, to the Planning Commission with 
terms expiring January 31, 2026. 

 Attachments:   Copies of Declining & Confirmation Letters 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  That the Board reappoints Mr. Roger King, Post Office Box 349, f Waverly, Virginia 23890, 
to the Planning Commission with terms expiring January 31, 2026, if it is desire of the Board;  

Make an appointment to fill the vacancy for the Wakefield District, effective February 1, 2022, 
expiring January 31, 2026. 

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY: 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly Seward 

D. Jones Tyler 

W. Jones White  

(Tie Breaker) 

Appointments - Page 3



Board of Supen•isors 

Susan B. Seward. Chairperson 
Wayne 0. Jones., Vice Chamnan 

C Eric Fly, Sr 

Debbie P. Jones 

Rufus E Tyler. Sr. 

Mr. Roger King 

Post Office Box 349 

Waverly, VA 23890 

Dear Mr.  King: 

Post Office Box 1397 

20 I 35 Princeton Road 

Sussex, Virg111ia 23884 

January 12, 2022 

Re: Appointment to Planning Commission 

Richard Douglas 
County Administrator 

rdouglaslal,sussexcoun tyva. gov 

Telephone· (434) 246-1000 

Facs1m1Ie· (434) 246-6013 

www sussexcountyva.gov 

Our records indicate that your appointment to the Planning Commission will expire January 31, 2022. So 

that we may have adequate documentation, this correspondence is being forwarded to you to ask whether 

or not you would like to be reappointed to the Industrial Development Authority. 

Please complete the area below and return in the self-addressed, stamped envelope by January 7, 2022. 

Two (2) originals have been provided. You may retain one (1) original for your records. 

Sincerely, 

Shilton R. Butts 

Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

Deputy Clerk to the Board 

---------------------------------========================================------======-

I wish to be reappointed to the Planning Commission. X 

I do not wish to be reappointed to the Planning Commission. 

Signature: {JhJ.tty,, fi:lfum;, {via telephone) Date: 1/12/2022 

Appointments - Page 4



Board of Superv isors 

Susan B. Seward, Chairperson 
Wayne 0. Jones , Vice Chainnan 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.

Debbie P. Jones 

Rufus E. Tyler. Sr. 

Ms. Brenda Burgess 

205 East Main Street 

Waverly, VA 23890 

Dear Ms. Burgess: 

Post Office Box 1397 

20135 Princeton Road 

Sussex, Virginia 23884 

January 12, 2022 

Re: Appointment to Planning Commission 

Richard Douglas 
County Administrator 

rdouglas@sussexcountyva.gov 

Telephone (434) 246-1000 

Facs1m1le· (434) 246-6013 

www sussexcountyva.gov 

Our records indicate that your appointment to the Planning Commission will expire January 31, 2022. So 

that we may have adequate documentation, this correspondence is being forwarded to you to ask whether 

or not you would like to be reappointed to the Industrial Development Authority. 

Please complete the area below and return in the self-addressed, stamped envelope by January 7, 2022. 

Two (2) originals have been provided. You may retain one (1) original for your records. 

Sincerely, 

Shilton R. Butts 

Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

Deputy Clerk to the Board 

I wish to be reappointed to the Planning Commission. 

X I do not wish to be reappointed to the Planning Commission. 

Signature: (JlnlfJ,;n i� (via telephone) Date: 1/12/2022 

Appointments - Page 5



SUSSEX COUNTY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 

(Updated May 2020) 

J. Lafayette Edmond, Chair (Courthouse)   Ms. Terry Massenburg,Vice-Chair (Henry) 
Waverly, Virginia 23890       Post Office Box 330 
Home: 804-834-2610       Stony Creek, VA 23882 
Mobile: 804-387-9330       Cell: 804-898-4283 
Term expires: 6/30/23       Work: 434-246-2701 
jlebigfoot@gmail.com     Term expires: 04/30/2024 

 Roger King (Wakefield) 
        Post Office Box 349 

 Waverly, VA 23890 
Rudolph Shands (Stony Creek) 
12267 Flowers Road 
Stony Creek, VA 23882 
Home: 434-246-2232 
Term expires: 06/30/2022  

Mr. Frank Irvin, Executive Director 
Executive Director  
Sussex Service Authority 
4385 Beefsteak Road 
Waverly, Virginia 23890 
Office: 804-834-8930 
firving@ssa-va.org 

Mr. Dennis Mason (Wakefield) 
407 East Main Street 
Wakefield, VA 23888 
Home: 757-899-8401 
Cell: 757-647-9799 
Term: 06/30/22 

Mr. Andrew Mayes (Waverly) 
328 Coppahaunk Avenue 
Waverly, VA 23890 
Home: 804-337-1858 
Term: 01/31/23 
amayes@commonwealthenvironmental.com 

Cell: 804-691-1989 
Term expires: 01/31/2022 

Mr. Kevin Bracy (Courthouse) 
18377 Courthouse Road 
Yale, VA 23897 
Home: 434-246-4720 
Cell: 757-635-8685 
Term expires: 01/31/23 
bornajunker@hotmail.com 

Brenda Burgess (Waverly)  
205 East Main Street 
Waverly, VA 23890 
Home: 804-834-8881 
Cell: 757-899-0083 
Term: 01/31/22  
bl721@aol.com 

Robert Young, Jr. (Stony Creek) 
Post Office Box 133 
Stony Creek, Virginia 23882 
Home: 434-246-4781  
Work: 434-594-2492 
Mobile: 804-896-3907 
Term: 04/30/24  

**Planning Commission meet the first Monday of each Month at 6:00 p.m. ** 

Appointments - Page 6

mailto:jlebigfoot@gmail.com
mailto:bornajunker@hotmail.com
mailto:bl721@aol.com


BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Appointments #5.03 

Subject: Appointment of the Department of Social Services Advisory Board 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   This item was tabled from previous Board of Supervisors regular meetings agenda. 

The Board discussed contacting members of the former DSS Administrative Board in regards to 
their interest in serving on the Advisory Board.  There was also the Board’s general consensus to 
have representation from each district.  A list of names was also provided by Mr. Hagy, the 
Director of Social Services. 

Three members—Stony Creek, Wakefield and Waverly Districts—were interested contingent 
upon further information provided. 

Recommendation:  none 

Attachment:   none 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:     

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ White ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker) 

Appointments - Page 7



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Appointments #5.04 

Subject:  Nominations for Appointments to the Board of Equalization 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 

Summary:  This item has been on previous Board agendas.  County Administrator Douglas stated 
that there were a number of individuals interested to consider. 

The four members currently serving on the Board of Equalization are: (1) Ms. Antoinette Jones, 
13174 Shands Road, Stony Creek, Virginia 23882; (2) Mr. Dennis Mason, 407 East Main Street, 
Wakefield, VA 23888; (3) Ms. Carla Mayes, 28237 Petersburg Road, Waverly, VA 23890; and, (4) 
Mr. Jerry Parham, 33117 Sussex Drive, Waverly, VA 23890. 

Appointments and qualifications are included in the Board packet. 

Recommendation:  That the Board recommends an individual(s) for nomination for appointment 
by the Circuit Court Judge to fill the vacancy and set the terms for the Board of Equalization. 

Attachments: § 58.1-3374 Appointments and §58.1-3374 Qualifications of members; vacancies 

============================================================================== 
ACTION:  That the Board recommends an individual(s) for nomination for appointment by the 
Circuit Court Judge to fill the vacancy and set the terms for the Board of Equalization. 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ White ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker) 

Appointments - Page 8



Code of Virginia 
Title 58.1. Taxation 
Subtitle III. Local Taxes 
Chapter 32. Real Property Tax 
Article 14. Boards of Equalization

§ 58.1-3370. Appointment
A. The circuit court having jurisdiction within each city and each county other than those
counties operating under § 58.1-3371 shall, in each tax year immediately following the year a
general reassessment or annual or biennial assessment is conducted in such city or county,
appoint for such city or county a board of equalization of real estate assessments, unless such
county or city has a permanent board of equalization appointed according to law. In addition, at
the request of the local governing body, the circuit court may appoint alternate members as
provided in subsection B of § 58.1-3373, and the provisions of that subsection shall apply mutatis
mutandis.

B. The term of any board of equalization appointed under the authority of this section shall
expire one year after the effective date of the assessment for which it was appointed. However, if
a taxpayer applies to the commissioner of the revenue or other official performing the duties
imposed on commissioners of the revenue for relief from a real property tax assessment prior to
the expiration of the board of equalization's term, and the term of the board of equalization
expires prior to a final determination on such application for relief, and the taxpayer advises the
circuit court that he wishes to appeal the determination to the board of equalization, then the
circuit court may reappoint the board of equalization to hear and act on such appeal.

Code 1950, § 58-895; 1975, c. 575; 1979, c. 577; 1983, c. 304; 1984, cc. 273, 675; 1991, c. 240;
2014, c. 19;2018, c. 604.

The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this
section(s) may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters
whose provisions have expired.

1 1/15/2022 12:00:00 AM

Appointments - Page 9

/vacode/58.1-3371/
/vacode/58.1-3373/
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0019
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0019
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?181+ful+CHAP0604


Code of Virginia 
Title 58.1. Taxation 
Subtitle III. Local Taxes 
Chapter 32. Real Property Tax 
Article 14. Boards of Equalization

§ 58.1-3374. Qualifications of members; vacancies
Except as provided in § 58.1-3371 or 58.1-3373, every board of equalization shall be composed of
not less than three members nor more than five members or the number of local election districts
in the locality, whichever is greater. In addition to such regular members, at the request of the
local governing body, the circuit court for any locality shall appoint one alternate member in the
case of a board with less than five members, and two alternate members in the case of a board
with five or more members. The qualifications, terms and compensation of alternate members
shall be the same as those of regular members. A regular member when he knows he will be
absent from or will have to abstain from any proceeding at a meeting shall notify the chairman of
the board of equalization at least 24 hours prior to the meeting of such fact. The chairman may
select an alternate to serve in the absent or abstaining member's place and the records of the
board shall so note. Such alternate member may vote on any proceeding in which a regular
member is absent or abstains.

All members of every board of equalization, including alternate members, shall be residents, a
majority of whom shall be freeholders, in the county or city for which they are to serve and shall
be selected from the citizens of the county or city. Appointments to the board of equalization
shall be broadly representative of the community. Thirty percent of the members of the board
shall be commercial or residential real estate appraisers, other real estate professionals, builders,
developers, or legal or financial professionals, and at least one such member shall sit in all cases
involving commercial, industrial or multi-family residential property, unless waived by the
taxpayer. No member of the board of assessors shall be eligible for appointment to the board of
equalization for the same reassessment. In order to be eligible for appointment, each prospective
member of such board shall attend and participate in the basic course of instruction given by the
Department of Taxation under § 58.1-206. In addition, at least once in every four years of service
on a board of equalization, each member of a board of equalization shall take continuing
education instruction provided by the Tax Commissioner pursuant to § 58.1-206. Any vacancy
occurring on any board of equalization shall be filled for the unexpired term by the authority
making the original appointment.

On any board or panel thereof considering appeals of commercial or multi-family residential
property in a locality with a population exceeding 100,000, 30 percent of the members of such
board or panel shall be commercial or multi-family residential real estate appraisers who are
licensed and certified by the Virginia Real Estate Appraiser Board to serve as general real estate
appraisers, other commercial or multi-family real estate professionals or licensed commercial or
multi-family real estate brokers, builders, developers, active or retired members of the Virginia
State Bar, or other legal or financial professionals whose area of practice requires or required
knowledge of the valuation of property, real estate transactions, building costs, accounting,
finance, or statistics. For the purposes of this section, commercial or multi-family residential
property shall be defined as any property that is either operated as or zoned for use as
commercial, industrial or multi-family residential rental property.

1 1/15/2022 12:00:00 AM

Appointments - Page 10

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-3371/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-3373/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-206/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-206/


Code 1950, § 58-899; 1979, c. 577; 1983, c. 304; 1984, c. 675; 1995, c. 24;2003, c. 1036;2009, c. 25;
2010, c. 552;2011, c. 10;2013, c. 197;2016, c. 38.

The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this
section(s) may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters
whose provisions have expired.

2 1/15/2022 12:00:00 AM

Appointments - Page 11

http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?951+ful+CHAP0024
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?951+ful+CHAP0024
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP1036
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP1036
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0025
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0025
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?101+ful+CHAP0552
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?101+ful+CHAP0552
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?111+ful+CHAP0010
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?111+ful+CHAP0010
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0197
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0197
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?161+ful+CHAP0038


BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Appointments #5.05 

Subject: SSA Alternate At-Large Position 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   This item has been on previous Board agendas.  Staff was advised by Mr. Frank Irving, 
of Sussex Service Authority, that there was a vacancy for an unexpired term on the Sussex Service 
Authority for an alternate in the At-Large position.   

The position is for any citizen who resides in Sussex County (prefer them to be in our service area, 
but not mandatory) and is not an elected official.  The position is currently held by Sam Harrison 
but he has moved out of Sussex County and is no longer eligible.  He will continue to serve until 
his replacement has been appointed.   

This position will serve through December 2022 at which time they can be renewed for another 
four-year term. 

Recommendation That Board makes an appointment to fill the unexpired term of the alternate 
in the At-Large position on the Sussex Service Authority Board, through expiring December 31, 
2022 at which time a reappointment for a four-year term will need to be made. 

Attachment:   None 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:    That Board makes an appointment to fill the unexpired term of the alternate in the 
At-Large position on the Sussex Service Authority Board, through expiring December 31, 2022 at 
which time a reappointment for a four-year term will need to be made. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ White ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker) 

Appointments - Page 12



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Items #6.01 

Subject: Dell Computer Lease Agreement – Sheriff Giles 

Board Meeting Date:   January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 
Summary:    Sheriff Giles has requested approval of a lease agreement with Dell Financial Services 
for the acquisition of 30 mobile data terminals (MDTs) for use in Deputy Sheriff vehicles.  The 
total cost of $93,750 would be split over three years ($31,903.59 per year) and included in the 
Sheriff’s departmental budget.  The County Attorney has reviewed the lease agreement. 

Recommendation:   Staff recommends approval of the attached lease agreement with Dell 
Financial Services for 30 MDTs at a total cost of $93,750, or annual payment over three years of 
$31,903.59. 

Attachments:  Lease agreement with Dell Financial Services for 30 MDTs 

============================================================================== 

REQUESTED ACTION:    

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker) 

Action Item -  Pages 1



Action Item -  Pages 2



Action Item -  Pages 3



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Items #6.02 

Subject: Request for Funds for Grocery Store Market Analysis 

Board Meeting Date:   January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 
Summary:    Staff has been in discussion with Wakefield’s Great Valu Market ownership and the 
Town of Stony Creek about a potential expansion into the vacant grocery building in Stony Creek. 
The Great Valu Market is strongly interested in expanding to that location but is requesting that 
the County or Town fund a grocery field study/market analysis that would justify locating a store 
in Stony Creek.  They have previously utilized and are recommending a consultant, ROIC 
Analytics, to complete the market analysis, at a cost up to $9,000.  The Town of Stony Creek has 
agreed to cover 25 percent of the study costs, approximately $2,250, and is requesting assistance 
from the county to fund the balance of this analysis. 

Recommendation:   Staff recommends that up to $6,750 in ARPA funds be used (a budget 
amendment would be forthcoming at a future meeting) to complete the proposed market 
analysis, and that the County Administrator be authorized to execute a professional services 
master agreement with ROIC Analytics to complete this work. 

Attachments:  ROIC Analytics Statement of Work for Grocery Field Study and Professional 
Services Master Agreement 

============================================================================== 

REQUESTED ACTION:    

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker) 

Action Item -  Pages 4



Statement of Work 

Grocery Field Study 

January 7, 2022 

Prepared by 

ROIC analytics, LLC

For 

Sussex County, VA and the Town of Stony Creek, VA

Action Item -  Pages 5



© 2022 ROIC analytics, LLC 2 

Scope of Services 

Models & Analytics, ROIC analytics, LLC 

The following sets forth the Service(s) to be provided upon your signed acceptance, together with 

Cost and Timing for each Service.    

75% of the cost will be billed to Sussex County, VA. 
25% of the cost will be billed to the Town of Stony Creek, VA. 

Services Cost Timing***

Grocery Sales Forecasting Field Study.  A gravity-based analysis 

and write up that provides a sales forecast for a grocery store 
located at 12485 Main St, Stony Creek Virginia, 23882.  This 
location is a former Jones and Company Supermarket. 

This project includes fieldwork. 

$7,000  
plus travel 

costs not to 
exceed 
$2,000 

Estimated 
delivery 45 

days 

Total $7,000

Action Item -  Pages 6



© 2022 ROIC analytics, LLC 3 

Scope of Services and Signatures Page 

The total cost for the scheduled Services is due as follows. 50% of the project cost will be billed 
and is due at signing and the remaining balance, including travel costs, will be due at project 
delivery.  This Scope of Services supersedes all previous contracts except where indicated on 
the previous pages.  Any additional Services will be quoted and/or agreed to and billed separately. 

The Services herein are governed by the terms of the Professional Services Master Agreement 
(PSMA) on file.  If no PSMA is on file, Sussex County, VA and the Town of Stony Creek, VA will 
be required to agree to the terms of service in writing before any work will begin. Timing is an 
estimate of project duration only, and the project officially starts after all Sussex County, VA and 
the Town of Stony Creek, VA contractual and data obligations are met.  If this statement of work 
includes licensing of products or services not provided directly by ROIC analytics, including 
software or data, Sussex County, VA and the Town of Stony Creek, VA will be required to agree 
to the provider’s terms of service. 

This proposal is for Sussex County, VA and the Town of Stony Creek, VA only and should not be 
shared without the express written consent of ROIC analytics, LLC.  This proposal expires 30 
days from the date on page one if not signed.   

Agreed and Accepted: 

Sussex County, VA 

By: _____________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

Date: ______________________________

ROIC ANALYTICS, LLC 

By: ________________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ 

Date: ______________________________

Town of Stony Creek, VA 

By: _____________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

Date: ______________________________

Please return signed agreement to ROIC analytics via e-mail to info@roicanalytics.com, or by fax to (888) 604-2521 

Action Item -  Pages 7



© 2022 ROIC analytics, LLC 4 

Appendix A: About ROIC analytics 

ROIC analytics, LLC provides analytic services and partner solutions to help corporate-owned and 
franchised chain businesses of all sizes expand confidently, grow sales, and compete more effectively. We 
empower decision-makers with real-time customer and competitive intelligence, predictive models for 
accurate site selection and sales forecasting, and powerful and easy to use tools that fit one's needs and 
budget. 

ROIC analytics offers our clients: 

• Experience.  Your project team members are all seasoned professionals with proven experience
delivering results.   We understand the “science” of retail analytics and continually develop the “art”
necessary to make it effective in the real world.  All of our professional services staff members
honed their craft as senior-level analysts and management at major retailers before joining our
team as consultants.  Since then we have worked with Fortune 100 corporations and the smallest
startups across all classes of retail and service.  When we aren’t helping our clients expand their
business, we are found walking the aisles of our clients’ stores and competition in markets across
the country.  We live retail analytics.

• Partnership.  We understand the risks involved in trusting an outside company to assist with
important strategic and tactical decisions.  We take your need for confidentiality seriously and work
closely with you throughout our relationship to ensure that you are in control and your executive
team is empowered to make better decisions.

• Proven Solutions.  Analytics is all we do.  We leverage the best tools available for retail research
as well as build our own software and models from the ground up to ensure that your results are
accurate as possible and flexible to your unique requirements.  We partner with software
companies that share our values.

• Trusted Data.  Our data sources are the same ones trusted by the nation’s top retailers.  When
needed, we supplement this data with intelligence gathered in the field to ensure our research is
based on accurate and up-to-date facts.

• Commitment.  Most of our business comes from word of mouth and recommendations from our
existing clients.  Many of our clients have been with us for years and look to us first when a new
challenge comes their way.  We appreciate this loyalty and try to never take it for granted.  We
believe in continuously earning your business.

For further information about ROIC analytics, please visit http://www.roicanalytics.com/ 

Action Item -  Pages 8

http://www.roicanalytics.com/


Page 1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MASTER AGREEMENT 

This Professional Services Master Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between Sussex County, 
VA and the Town of Stony Creek, VA ("Company"), and ROIC ANALYTICS, LLC, an Idaho limited 
liability company ("Service Provider"). 

RECITALS 

A. This Agreement is incorporated into and made a part of the immediately preceding Scope of

Services.  The Scope of Services is incorporated herein by this reference thereto.

B. Service Provider is in the business of providing market planning services, sales forecasting,
model development, location optimization business systems, predictive analytics regarding commercial
businesses and other related professional services.

C. Company desires to engage Service Provider to perform certain of those services for the
compensation as further set forth in the Scope of Services and in this Agreement, and Service Provider
desires to accept such engagement.  The services to be provided by Service Provider under the Scope of
Services are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Services.”

In consideration of the foregoing and of the terms, conditions and covenants set forth below and in the 
Scope of Services, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1    TERM OF AGREEMENT 

Section 1.01 TERM.  This Agreement will become effective on the date of the last party to sign 
the Scope of Services, and will continue in effect through the performance of the Services to be provided 
under the Scope of Services, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions set forth in 
Article 7.  This Agreement may be renewed or extended as agreed by Company and Service Provider. 

ARTICLE 2    INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 

Section 2.01 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  It is the express intention of the parties 
that Service Provider shall be at all times an independent contractor and not an employee, agent, joint 
venturer or partner of Company.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating 
or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between Company and Service Provider or 
any, employee, agent or subcontractor of Service Provider.  Both parties acknowledge that Service 
Provider is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes.  Service Provider shall retain the right to 
perform services for others during the term of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3    SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY SERVICE PROVIDER 

Section 3.01 SPECIFIC SERVICES.  In accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement and the Scope of Services, Company engages Service Provider, and Service Provider 
hereby accepts such engagement. Service Provider's Services shall not include supervising, overseeing, 
or being reported to by Company or Company's agents or employees in the normal course of business 

unless specifically requested by Company. 

Immediately following this Agreement is a Schedule of Services, which lists and explains the 
services that Service Provider may provide, including (i) Consumer Profiling, (ii) Market Potential, (iii) 

Action Item -  Pages 9



Page 2 

Asset Rationalization, (iv) Market Viability, (v) Market Planning, (vi) Sales Transfer and Cannibalization 
and (vii) Customer/Ad Hoc Services.  Immediately preceding this Agreement is the Scope of Services 
which sets forth the particular Services to be provided under the Scope of Services and this Agreement, 

together with the Cost and Timeline thereof. 

In the event the parties wish to add to or amend the Scope of Services, the parties may do so by 
executing an amendment to this Agreement and/or to the Scope of Services, as agreed by Company and 
Service Provider. 

Section 3.02 METHOD OF PERFORMING SERVICES.  Service Provider will determine the 
method, details, and means of performing the Services provided under the Scope of Services, provided 
that Service Provider shall report and provide the Services directly to Richard Douglas or to an employee 
of Company designated by Richard Douglas (either being referred to hereinafter as the “Company 
Representative”).  Subject to the foregoing, Company shall have no right to, and shall not, control the 
manner or determine the method of accomplishing the Services by Service Provider. 

Section 3.03 PLACE OF WORK.  Unless otherwise set forth in the Scope of Services, Service 
Provider shall perform the Services required by this Agreement at any place or location and at such times 

as Service Provider shall determine, with Service Provider’s main office being located in Boise, Idaho. 

Section 3.04 OWNERSHIP.  Service Provider will provide the Services in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement and the Scope of Services, and Service Provider will have sufficient rights in and 
to the external data used for analysis to permit Service Provider to fulfill its obligations under this 
Agreement.  Subject to applicable third party license agreements, all Company customer, store and 
proposed data and the deliverables and outputs developed for the Company by Service Provider are the 
sole and exclusive property of the Company.  All formulae, processes, systems, machines, compositions 
of matter (or improvements thereof), computer programs, know how, discoveries, techniques, drawings, 
specifications, reports, software and other patentable inventions used to provide the Services are the 
sole and exclusive property of Service Provider. 

Section 3.05 STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  Service Provider will perform the Services in a 
timely, competent and professional manner consistent with the customs and practices of its industry. 
Service Provider shall not be in breach of this Agreement and shall have no liability to Company 
hereunder to the extent that Service Provider’s failure to perform under this Agreement arises from, or is 
attributable to, information provided to Service Provider by Company that is delayed, incorrect or 
incomplete.  Company acknowledges that third party applications are involved in the Services that 
Service Provider is to provide pursuant to this Agreement.  Company acknowledges that Service Provider 
cannot customize, design, modify or otherwise alter third party applications. 

Section 3.06 SUBCONTRACTORS.  Service Provider may engage qualified subcontractors as 
deemed necessary by Service Provider to provide Services and, upon request, Service Provider will 
provide Company with a list of all such subcontractors.  No engagement of subcontractors shall relieve 
Service Provider of any of its obligations or liabilities hereunder.  Services provided by any subcontractor 
will strictly comply with all applicable laws, as well as the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
including without limitation, as regards nondisclosure of confidential information.  Service Provider shall 
be solely responsible for engaging, managing, supervising and paying all subcontractors, unless 
otherwise specifically set forth in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4    COMPENSATION 

Section 4.01 AMOUNT OF COMPENSATION.  In consideration for the Services to be 
performed by Service Provider, Company agrees to pay compensation to Service Provider in the amount 

Action Item -  Pages 10



Page 3 

of the total Costs as set forth in the Scope of Services.  Additional compensation may also be paid as 
further set forth below. 

Section 4.02 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION.  Company shall pay Service Provider the 
compensation set forth in the Scope of Services.  If Service Provider performs at Company’s request any 
Services not specified in the Scope of Services, Company shall be charged at the rates specified by 
Service Provider and agreed to by Company at such time for such Services performed as agreed by 
Company and Service Provider.  Except as specified otherwise in the Scope of Services, Service 
Provider will submit an invoice to Company setting forth the Services rendered upon completion of the 
Services.  All invoices are due and payable within thirty (30) days after the invoice date.  Invoices not 
timely paid will incur a service charge of one percent (1%) per month on the outstanding balance or the 
maximum legal rate allowed by law, whichever is less.  All payments shall be made in US currency. 

Section 4.03 EXPENSES.  In addition to amounts to be paid to Service Provider under Sections 
4.01 and 4.02, within thirty (30) days of receipt of appropriate documentation, Company shall reimburse 
Service Provider on a monthly basis for those customary and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses, without 
markup (including reasonable travel and entertainment charges), incidental to the performance of 
Services for Company.  Any such reimbursements not timely paid will incur a service charge of one 
percent (1%) per month on the outstanding balance or the maximum legal rate allowed by law, whichever 
is less.  All payments shall be made in US currency. 

ARTICLE 5    OBLIGATIONS OF SERVICE PROVIDER 

Section 5.01 ASSIGNMENT.  Except as provided in Section 3.06, neither this Agreement nor 
any rights, duties or obligations under this Agreement may be delegated or assigned by Service Provider 
without the prior written consent of Company. 

Section 5.02 NONDISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  Service Provider shall 
not, except as required by law or pursuant to court order, disclose to any unauthorized person any 
confidential information Service Provider may obtain regarding Company, its customers, or its methods of 
doing business.  All confidential information, including but not limited to files, records, documents, data, 
lists, and similar items relating to the business of Company, whether prepared by Service Provider or 
otherwise coming into Service Provider’s possession, shall remain the exclusive property of Company 
and shall not be used by Service Provider except in the course of the performance of Service Provider's 
Services under this Agreement.  Service Provider represents to Company that Service Provider has no 
existing clients which would create a conflict of interest with Company. 

Section 5.03 STATE AND FEDERAL TAXES.  As Service Provider is not Company's employee, 
Service Provider shall be responsible for paying all of Service Provider’s required state and federal taxes. 
In particular, Company will not withhold FICA (Social Security) from Service Provider's payments; 
Company will not make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Service Provider's 
behalf; Company will not withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Service Provider; 
Company will not make disability insurance contributions on behalf of Service Provider; and Company will 
not obtain workers' compensation insurance on behalf of Service Provider. 

ARTICLE 6    OBLIGATIONS OF COMPANY 

Section 6.01 COOPERATION OF COMPANY.  Company agrees to comply with all reasonable 
requests of Service Provider necessary to the performance of Service Provider’s duties under this 
Agreement. 

Action Item -  Pages 11



Page 4 

Section 6.02 ASSIGNMENT.  Neither this Agreement nor any rights, duties or obligations under 
this Agreement may be delegated or assigned by Company without the prior written consent of Service 
Provider. 

ARTICLE 7    TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

Section 7.01 TERMINATION ON OCCURRENCE OF STATED EVENTS.  Either party may 
terminate this Agreement immediately, without liability, upon the happening of any of the following or any 
other similar event:  (i) insolvency of the other party; (ii) filing of any petition by or against the other party 
under any bankruptcy, reorganization or receivership law; (iii) execution of an assignment for the benefit 
of creditors; or (iv) appointment of any trustee or receiver of the other party’s business or assets or any 
part thereof; unless such petition, assignment or appointment is withdrawn or nullified with fifteen (15) 
days of such event. 

Section 7.02 TERMINATION BY COMPANY FOR DEFAULT OF SERVICE PROVIDER. 
Should Service Provider materially default in the performance of this Agreement, Company, at 
Company’s option, may terminate this Agreement by giving written notification to Service Provider 
specifying the particulars of such default, and if Service Provider fails to cure such default within thirty 

(30) days after receipt of such notice, this Agreement shall terminate.

Section 7.03 TERMINATION BY SERVICE PROVIDER FOR DEFAULT OF COMPANY. 
Except as set forth in Section 7.04, should Company materially default in the performance of this 
Agreement, Service Provider, at Service Provider's option, may terminate this Agreement by giving 
written notification to Company specifying the particulars of such default, and if Company fails to cure 
such default within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, this Agreement shall terminate. 

Section 7.04 TERMINATION FOR FAILURE TO MAKE AGREED-UPON PAYMENTS.  Should 
Company fail to pay Service Provider all or any part of the compensation set forth in Article 4 of this 
Agreement on the date due, such failure, at Service Provider’s option, may be deemed a material default 
by Company, and Service Provider may terminate this Agreement if the failure is not remedied by 
Company within ten (10) days from the date payment is due. 

Section 7.05 TERMINATION BY EITHER SERVICE PROVIDER OR COMPANY. 
Notwithstanding the termination rights listed above, either Service Provider or Company, for any reason 
or no reason, may terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to the other party. 

Section 7.06 FINAL PAYMENT.  In the event of any termination pursuant to the foregoing, all 
sums owed to Service Provider shall be paid in full within ten (10) days after the final invoice has been 

received from Service Provider. 

Section 7.07 SURVIVAL.  Notwithstanding any termination of this Agreement, as a continuing 
obligation that shall survive termination, in the event that any payment remains due and owing from 
Company to Service Provider upon such termination, Company shall nonetheless be obligated to pay the 
same to Service Provider, and such obligation shall continue until all amounts owing have been paid in 
full. 

Section 7.08 NOT IN DEFAULT.  Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, neither party shall have 
the right to terminate this Agreement if such party is in default under this Agreement.  In the event of any 
termination of this Agreement under this Article 7, both parties shall be released from any further 
obligations hereunder except for liabilities, actual or contingent, which arose prior to the date of 
termination. 

Action Item -  Pages 12



Page 5 

ARTICLE 8    GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 8.01 NOTICES.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be given by telefacsimile, by personal service, by United States mail or by United States express 
mail or other established express delivery service (such as Federal Express), postage or delivery charge 
prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the appropriate party at the address or telefacsimile 
number set forth below: 

Service Provider: ROIC analytics, LLC 
350 N. 9th Street, Suite 201 
Boise, ID 83702 
Fax No.: (208) 389-9500 
Email:  djordan@roicanalytics.com 

Company: Company._____________________ 
Address   _____________________        
City, State   Zip_________________        
Fax No._______________________ 

Email:________________________ 

The person and address to which notices are to be given may be changed at any time by any party upon 
written notice to the other party.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed given 
upon receipt. 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the term “receipt” shall mean the earlier of any of the following:  (i) the 
date of delivery of the notice or other document to the address specified pursuant to subparagraph (a) 
above as shown on the return receipt, (ii) the date of actual receipt of the notice or other document by the 
person or entity specified pursuant to subparagraph (a) above, (iii) in the case of a telefacsimile, the date 
and time of receipt as shown on the confirmation of the telefacsimile transmission, or (iv) in the case of 
refusal to accept delivery or inability to deliver the notice or other document, the earlier of (A) the date of 
the attempted delivery or refusal to accept delivery, (B) the date of the postmark on the return receipt, or 
(C) the date of receipt of notice of refusal or notice of non-delivery by sending party.

Section 8.02 LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY.  

8.02.01 Except as to Service Provider’s obligations provided herein under any 
confidentiality provisions, Company hereby expressly agrees that Service Provider’s liability in connection 
with the performance of Services hereunder shall be Service Provider’s re-performance of such Services 
or Service Provider’s refunding of any fees Company has paid for such Services and certain other costs 
mutually agreed to by Service Provider and Company resulting from Service Provider not performing the 
Services in accordance with this Agreement.  IN NO EVENT IS EITHER PARTY LIABLE TO THE 
OTHER PARTY FOR ANY PUNITIVE, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO DAMAGES TO BUSINESS REPUTATIONS, LOST 
BUSINESS OR LOST PROFITS) WHETHER FORESEEABLE OR NOT AND HOWEVER CAUSED. 

8.02.02 Service Provider shall not be liable for any default or delay in the 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement if, and to the extent, the default or delay is caused, 
directly or indirectly, by any circumstance beyond Service Provider’s reasonable control.  Service 
Provider shall be excused from performance of the affected obligations for as long as such circumstances 
prevail.  Service Provider shall use commercially reasonable efforts to recommence performance as soon 
as practicable. 

Action Item -  Pages 13



Page 6 

8.02.03 COMPANY IS RESPONSIBLE FOR BACK-UP AND OTHER 
PROTECTION OF ITS DATA AGAINST LOSS, DAMAGE, OR DESTRUCTION.  SERVICE PROVIDER 
WILL HAVE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY WITH RESPECT THERETO. 

8.02.04 While Service Provider may provide from time to time certain hardware, 
software or other items to Company, Service Provider is primarily providing Services under this 
Agreement. The only warranty provided on hardware, software and other items is the original equipment 
manufacturer’s warranty. SERVICE PROVIDER MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, 
EXPRESS, STATUTORY OR IMPLIED, TO COMPANY OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON WITH RESPECT 
TO ANY EQUIPMENT OR SERVICE PROVIDED BY SERVICE PROVIDER AS OUTLINED IN THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY SCOPE OF SERVICES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY 
WARRANTIES REGARDING TITLE, MERCHANTABILITY, SUITABILITY, FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR OR OTHER PURPOSE (REGARDLESS OF ANY PREVIOUS COURSE OF DEALINGS 
BETWEEN THE PARTIES OR CUSTOM OR USAGE OF TRADE), NONINFRINGEMENT, OR 
RESULTS TO BE DERIVED FROM THE USE OF SERVICES, AND THESE WARRANTIES ARE 
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED. 

Section 8.03 ENTIRE AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES.  This Agreement and the Scope of 
Services supersedes any and all agreements, either oral or written, between the parties hereto with 
respect to the rendering of the Services by Service Provider for Company and contains all the covenants 
and agreements between the parties with respect to the rendering of such Services in any manner 
whatsoever.  Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements have been made, orally or otherwise, by any party, or by anyone acting on 
behalf of any party, which are not embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement or promise 
not contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding.  Any modification of this Agreement will be 
effective only if it is in writing signed by the party to be charged.  If there is any conflict between the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and the terms and conditions of the Scope of Services, the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement shall prevail.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be construed as a 
whole and not strictly for or against any party.  No presumption shall exist in favor of or against any party 

to this Agreement as the result of the drafting and preparation hereof. 

Section 8.04 PARTIAL INVALIDITY.  If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless 
continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way.  

Section 8.05 ATTORNEYS' FEES.  If any action at law or in equity, including inaction for 
declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party 
will be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees, which may be set by the court in the same action or in 
separate legal action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which that party may be 

entitled. 

Section 8.06 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be separately executed in several 
counterparts, all of which together shall constitute one Agreement, notwithstanding that all signatories 
have not signed the same counterpart. 

Section 8.07 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho. 

Section 8.08 WAIVER.  The failure of either party to insist upon strict performance of any of the 
provisions of this Agreement will not be deemed a waiver of any breach or default. 

Action Item -  Pages 14



Page 7 

Section 8.09 AUTHORITY.  The individuals executing this Assignment represent and warrant 
that they have the power and authority to do so, and to bind the entities for which they are executing this 

Assignment. 

Action Item -  Pages 15



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Unfinished Business #8.01 
 
Subject: Voting District Mapping 
 
Board Meeting Date:   January 20 2022  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:    At the December 2021 regular meeting, Alec Brebner, Crater PDC Executive Director, 
presented a potential voting district map that reflects population changes and changes to district 
requirements.  The primary changes to the existing voting map reflect the exclusion of most of 
the prison population within Sussex County, which primarily impacts the boundaries of the 
Courthouse District.  Please note that the potential map was completed to minimize changes to 
existing boundaries yet meet voting district requirements.  Also please note that since the 
potential map was presented, state and federal voting boundaries have been finalized, and allows 
the county to move forward with consideration of a revised voting district map.  Once the Board 
of Supervisors reaches an agreement on a potential map, then staff can advertise a required 
public hearing that is needed prior to adoption of the map. 
 
Recommendation:   No recommendation, and next steps and timeline depend on how the Board 
of Supervisors wishes to move forward. 
 
Attachment:  None 
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:    
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 
W. Jones ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
       (Tie Breaker)  



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   New Business           #9.01 

Subject: Electronic Summons System Fee Ordinance – Sheriff Giles 

Board Meeting Date:  January 20 2022 

============================================================================== 

Summary:    Sheriff Giles is requesting consideration of an ordinance that would allow for the 
assessment of an additional $5.00 as part of costs in each criminal or traffic case in the district or 
circuit courts of the county.  This revenue would be designated for the implementation and 
maintenance of an electronic summons system.  In order to move forward, a public notice is 
required to be advertised that would allow for consideration of an ordinance.  Attached for your 
review are a public notice and draft notice prepared by the County Attorney. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of a public notice to consider the electronic 
summons system ordinance at the February regular meeting, if the Board of Supervisors is in 
agreement to consider such an ordinance. 

Attachment: Public meeting notice and draft electronic summons system fee ordinance 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:     

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ White ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker) 



SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

At its regular meeting on February 6, 2022, the Board of Supervisors shall consider adoption of 

an ORDINANCE TO ASSESS AN ADDITIONAL SUM OF FIVE DOLLARS ($5.00) AS 

PART OF THE COSTS IN EACH CRIMINAL OR TRAFFIC CASE IN THE DISTRICT OR 

CIRCUIT COURTS OF SUSSEX COUNTY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION AND 

MAINTENANCE OF AN ELECTRONIC SUMMONS SYSTEM. 

 

This ordinance, authorized by Va. Code §17.1-279.1 allows the County Board of Supervisors to 

assess in each criminal or traffic case in the Sussex District and Circuit Courts, where the defendant 

is charged with a violation of any such statute or ordinance by a local law-enforcement agency, a 

sum not in excess of five dollars ($5.00). Such assessment shall be ordered as part of court costs 

collected by the Clerk of Court, who shall remit the fees to the Treasurer of Sussex County. The 

Treasurer shall hold such funds subject to appropriation by the Board of Supervisors to the 

Sheriff’s Office of Sussex County to be used solely to fund software, hardware, and associated 

equipment costs for the implementation and maintenance of an electronic summons system.   

 

A full copy of the proposed ordinance may be obtained on the Sussex County website at: 

www.sussexcountyva.gov.  Questions may be directed to the Richard, County Administrator, at 

rdouglas@sussexcountyva.gov. 

 

 

 
 
 



SUSSEX COUNTY 

ORDINANCE #22-01 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ASSESS AN ADDITIONAL SUM OF FIVE DOLLARS ($5.00) AS 

PART OF THE COSTS IN EACH CRIMINAL OR TRAFFIC CASE IN THE DISTRICT 

OR CIRCUIT COURTS OF SUSSEX COUNTY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION AND 

MAINTENANCE OF AN ELECTRONIC SUMMONS SYSTEM 

 

WHEREAS, Va. Code Section 17.1-279.1 allows for the governing body of any locality 

to impose a fee not to exceed five dollars ($5.00) as part of the costs for each criminal and traffic 

case in district or circuit courts; and  
 

WHEREAS, such fee must be used to fund software, hardware, and associated equipment 

costs for the implementation and maintenance of an electronic summons system; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors desires to assess said “Electronic 

Summons System” fee; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is ordained by the Board of Supervisors of Sussex County, 

Virginia, that the ordinance establishing an Electronic Summons System Assessment is hereby 

adopted as follows:  
 

In addition to all other fees imposed by law, there is hereby imposed in each criminal or 

traffic case in the Sussex District and Circuit Courts, where the defendant is charged with a 

violation of any such statute or ordinance by a local law-enforcement agency, a fee of five dollars 

($5.00) as authorized by Section 17.1-279.1 of the Code of Virginia.  
 

Such assessment shall be ordered as part of court costs collected by the Clerk of Court, 

who shall remit the fees to the Treasurer of Sussex County. The Treasurer shall hold such funds 

subject to appropriation by the Board of Supervisors to the Sheriff’s Office of Sussex County 

to be used solely to fund software, hardware, and associated equipment costs for the 

implementation and maintenance of an electronic summons system.   
 

The assessment provided for in this section shall be in addition to all other costs prescribed 

by law for such purposes by the Code of Virginia, as it may be amended.  

This Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption.  
 

Adopted by the Sussex Board of Supervisors this 17th day of February, 2022. 

           

           By:  
  

         

               ________________________ 

       , Chairman 

        Board of Supervisors 

        County of Sussex, Virginia 

ATTEST: 
 

_________________________________ 

Clerk to the Board 


	#1 1 20 2022 agenda (00000002)
	#2.01-1 December 16 2021 minutes
	#2-1 December 2021 Warrants & Vouchers
	December 2021

	#2-2 Consent Agenda
	#2.03 Dec2021 Treas Report
	#2.04 TREASURER Dec2021 Financial Update
	#2.05-1 SW Svcs Cover Sheet
	#2.05-2 November 2021 Tonnage Report
	#2.05-3 December 2021 Tonnage Report (00000002)
	#2.05-4 Public Safety
	#2.05-5 Public Safety Monthly Report
	#2.05-6 Planning Department
	#2.05-7 November Monthly BOS Report
	#2.05-8 Sheriff's Cover
	#2.05-9 Sheriff's report
	#2.05-10 Sheriff's November report
	#2.05-11 Bldg Dept cover
	#2.06-1 burn ban
	#2.06-2 Public Safety Burn Ban

	#3 Recognitions
	#3.01-1 FY21 Audit
	#3.01-2 Rep Letter
	#3.02 Intro to DCA
	#3.02-1 Intro David Conmy
	#3.02-2 Resume

	#3.03-1 RTE 35-40 Road Safety
	#3.03-2 RTE 35-40 Road Safety Assessment
	#3.04-1 Potential Recreation Projects

	#4 Public Hearing
	#4.01-1 Public Hearing Item 4.01
	#4.01-2
	#4.01-3 Ordinance
	#4.01-4 Ordinance

	#5 Appointments
	#5.01-1 Appointment request.Green replacement
	#5.01-2 Board Resignation Letter-HOB
	#5.02-1 Appointments - Planning Commission
	#5.02-2-3 PC CONF LTR0001
	#5.02-4 Planning Commission Board 5 14 2020
	#5.03 DSS Advisory Board
	#5.04-1 Appointments -Board of Equalization
	#5.04-2 BoE
	#5.04-3
	#5.05 SSA Alternate At-Lrg Position

	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-1 Dell Computer Lease Agmt
	#6.01-2 Dell Computer Lease Sheriff (00000002)
	#6.02-1 Grocery Store Market Analysis
	#6.02-2 Statement of WorkSussexCounty1-7-22
	#6.02-3 ROIC analytics LLC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MASTER AGREEMENT (00000002)

	#8 Voting District Mapping
	#9 New Business (1)
	#9.01-1 Electronic Summons Sys blank (002)
	#9.01-2 SHERIFF Sussex Electronic Summons System Fee Public Notice DRAFT 1.5.22 (00000002)
	#9.01-3 Sussex Electronic Summons System Fee Ordinance DRAFT 1.5.22




